FIRST
GLOBAL
BANK

i
Your Commercial Bank from GraceKennedy

-

pwc
Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
First Global Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of First Global Bank Limited, set out on pages 1 to
60, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of First Global
Bank Limited as at 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Jamaican Companies Act.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those
records, and the accompanying financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the information
required by the Jamaican Companies Act, in the manner so required.

L"' W
Chartered Accountants
27 March 2014
Kingston, Jamaica

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Scotiabank Centre, Duke Street, Box 372, Kingston, Jamaica
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2011
Note $°000 $’000 $°000
34 Restated Restated
ASSETS
Cash and bank balances 5 3,434,875 3,626,449 2,602,772
ltems in the course of collection from other banks 145,509 200,751 120,354
Securities purchased under resale agreements 6 212,347 548,483 320,653
Loans 7 15,829,964 13,481,699 11,682,265
Investment securities 8 7,792,434 6,776,372 6,794,588
Pledged assets 8 5,333,349 4,614,386 5,764,975
Forward currency contracts 9 4,944 - 6,166
Property, plant and equipment 10 338,280 331,839 299,629
Intangible assets 1 359,761 207,172 85,499
Deferred income tax assets 12 370,813 437,069 410,171
Taxation recoverable 37,854 37,854 37,854
Other assets 13 211,367 221,279 350,432
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of undertaking 51,639 457,505 221,952
Total Assets 34,123,136 30,940,858 28,697,310
LIABILITIES
Customer deposits 14 21,509,107 18,525,156 16,370,266
items in the course of payment 116,827 116,520 126,527
Bank overdraft 30,796 8,790 6,266
Forward currency contracts 9 - 3,422 -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 3,941,004 3,796,201 4,125,242
Short term loans 15 850,856 833,193 777,699
Loans from specialised banks 16 1,480,799 1,345,683 1,688,675
Pension plan liability 17 - 138,635 103,454
Other employment benefit obligations 17 190,223 155,666 129,014
Other liabilities 18 320,651 245,883 218,506
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of undertaking 51,639 457,505 221,952
Total Liabilities 28,491,902 25,626,654 23,667,601
EQUITY
Share capital 19 2,414,181 2,414,181 2,414,181
Reserve fund 20 889,096 806,074 748,337
Fair value reserve 21 (209,543) 63,635 93,399
Loan loss reserve 22 516,708 392,424 454,186
Retained earnings reserve 23 1,194,630 1,194,630 1,194,630
Stock option reserve 24 6,904 6,523 5,608
Retained earnings 819,258 436,837 119,368
Total Equity 5,631,234 5,314,204 5,029,709
Total Liabilities and Equity 34,123,136 30,940,858 28,697,310
Approved fi the Board of Directors on 27 March 20142«1 7-3(! on i ehalf by:
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012
Note $°000 $°000
34 Restated
Interest Income —
Loans 1,820,782 1,594,200
Securities 25 868,660 905,617
Other 13,777 4,201
2,703,219 2,504,018
Interest Expense —
Customer deposits (443,855) (470,775)
Securities soid under repurchase agreements (156,549) (196,508)
Other (146,381) (139,392)
(746,785) (806,675)
Net interest Income 1,956,434 1,697,343
Provision for Loan Losses, Net 7 (47,458) (34,450)
1,908,976 1,662,893
Other Income —
Fees and commissions 26 585,702 473,427
Gains on foreign exchange transiation and trading 170,442 133,967
Gains on investment activities, net 27 142,364 121
Other 16,421 10,124
914,929 617,639
Net Interest and Other Income 2,823,905 2,280,532
Operating Expenses —
Staff costs 28 (996,602) (913,638)
Amortisation and depreciation (63,682) (71,164)
Administration and other expenses 29 (1,052,635) (908,253)
(2,112,819) (1.893,055)
Profit before Taxation 711,086 387,477
Taxation 30 (157,608) (729)
Net Profit for the Year 553,478 386,748
Other Comprehensive Income —
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Realised gains on available-for-sale investments, recycled to
comprehensive income (91,400) (81)
Unrealised losses on available-for-sale investments, net of taxes (181,678) (29,783)
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of pension and other employment benefit obligation 90,375 (25,391)
(182,703) (55,255)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 370,775 331,493
Fair Loan Retained Stock
Share Reserve Value Loss Earnings Option  Retained
Capital Fund Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Balance at 1 January 2012, as
restated (Note 34) 2,414,181 748,337 93,399 454,186 1,194,630 5,608 119,368 5,029,709
Total comprehensive income, as
restated - - (29,864) - - - 361,357 331,493
Total transactions with equity
holders-Preference dividends
paid - - - - - - (47,913) (47,913)
Employee share option scheme:
value of services received - - - - - 915 - 915
Transfer from loan loss reserve - - - (61,762) - - 61,762 -
Transfer to reserve fund - 57,737 - - - - (67,737) -
Balance at 31 December 2012, as
restated (Note 34) 2,414,181 806,074 63,535 392,424 1,194,630 6,523 436,837 5,314,204
Total comprehensive income - - (273,078) - - - 643,853 370,775
Total transactions with equity
holders-Preference dividends
paid - - - - - - (54,126) (54,126)
Employee share option scheme:
value of services received - - - - - 381 - 381
Transfer to loan loss reserve - - - 124,284 - - (124,284) -
Transfer to reserve fund - 83,022 - - - - (83,022) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 2,414,181 889,096 (209,543) 516,708 1,194,630 6,904 819,258 5,631,234

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Restated
23553 20
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the year 553,478 386,748
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash
used in operating activities —
Depreciation 10 51,124 46,418
Amortisation 11 12,458 24,746
Foreign exchange gains (169,736) (655,881)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 23 -
Gain on investment activities 27 (142,364) (121)
Employee stock option scheme 381 915
Provision for loan losses, net 7 47,458 34,450
interest income (2,703,219) (2,504,018)
interest expense 746,785 806,675
Taxation 30 157,608 729
(1,446,004) (1.859,339)
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities —
Customer deposits 2,992,645 2,166,723
Loans (2,394,221) (1,807,070)
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 154,768 (308,208)
Forward contracts (8,366) 9,588
Restricted cash and bank accounts (272,880) (182,822)
Post-employment benefits 31,485 23,747
Other assets 9,912 129,153
Other liabilities 74,768 27,377
(857,893) (1,800,851)
Interest received 2,699,413 2,476,743
Interest paid (765,863) (841,653)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
1,075,657 (1865,761)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of investment securities (6,829,351) (1,058,860)
Proceeds on disposal and maturity of investment securities 4,764,858 2,719,112
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 222 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 10 (57.810) (78,628)
Additions to intangible assets 11 (165,047) (146,419)
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (2.287,128) 1,435,205
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Due to specialised banks 135,918 (261,271)
Short term loan (514,942) 55,762
Preference dividends paid (54,126) (47,913)
Net cash used in financing activities (433,150) (253,422)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,644,621) 1,016,022
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 234,254 140,543
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 2,234,554 1,077,989
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 824,187 2,234,554
Comprising:
Cash and bank balances 5 1,146,176 1,610,630
Items in the course of collection from other banks 145,509 200,751
Securities purchased under resale agreements 212,347 548,483
Items in the course of payment (116,827) (116,520)
Short term loans 15 (532,222) -
Bank overdraft (30,796) (8,790)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 824,187 2,234,554

CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Identification and Activities

(a) First Global Bank Limited (the Bank) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica

and is licensed under the Banking Act, 1992. The Bank is a subsidiary of First Global Holdings Limited and
its ultimate parent company is GraceKennedy Limited. Both companies are incorporated and domiciled in
Jamaica. The Bank’s registered office is located at 28 - 48 Barbados Avenue, Kingston 5.

(b) The Bank’s principal activities are the provision of commercial banking and related financial services.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{(a) Basis of preparation

(b)

{c,

-~

(d)

(e)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), and have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Bank’s accounting policies. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in the current year
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published that
became effective during the current financial year. The Bank has assessed the relevance of all such new
standards, interpretations and amendments and has put into effect the following:

IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’. The main change resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCIl) on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The
Bank has implemented the amendment and adjusted the statement of comprehensive income.

IAS 19 (Revised), ‘Employee Benefits’. The impact on the Bank was as follows: the elimination of the
corridor approach and recognition of all actuarial gains and losses in OCl as they occur; to immediately
recognise all past service costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net
interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
(See Note 34 for the impact on adopting the revised standard).

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRS. The
requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRS and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted
by other standards within IFRS or US GAAP. The Bank has adopted the standard which has resulted in
extended disclosure in the financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been issued which are mandatory for the Bank’s accounting
periods beginning after 1 January 2013 or later periods, but were not effective at the date of the statement
of financial position, and which the Bank has not early adopted.

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’. This standard addresses the classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010. It
replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS
9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair
value and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of
the IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial
liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The
Bank is yet to assess IFRS 9’s full impact. The Bank will also consider the impact of the remaining phases
of IFRS 9 when completed by the International Accounting Standards Board.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014), This
interpretation sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax. The interpretation
addresses what the obligating event is that gives rise to pay a levy and when should a liability be
recognised. The Bank is assessing the impact of the adoption of the interpretation on its financial
statements.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in
Jamaican dollars which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in arriving at net profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies and classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the asset
and other changes. Translation differences resulting from the changes in amortised cost are recognised in
arriving at net profit or loss and other changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
90 days maturity from the date of acquisition including cash and non-restricted balances with Bank of
Jamaica, items in the course of collection from other banks, items in the course of payment, and securities
purchased under resale agreements.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value from the price of underlying items such as
bonds, equities, interest rates, foreign exchange or other indices. These contracts are initially recognised at
fair value on the date that they are entered into, and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the
date of each statement of financial position. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. Derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Assets and liabilities are set off
where the contracts are with the same counterparty, a legal right of set off exists and the cash flows are
intended to be settled on a net basis.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in arriving at profit or loss. This includes contracts
which, while providing effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management positions, do not
qualify for hedge accounting under the specific rules in International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Securities purchased/sold under resale/repurchase agreements

Securities purchased/sold under resale/repurchase agreements are treated as collateralised financing
transactions. The difference between the sale/purchase and repurchase/resale price is treated as interest and
is accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective yield method.

Loans and provision for credit losses

Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are initially recorded at cost, which is the
cash given to originate the loan including any origination fees and transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

A provision for credit losses is established if there is objective evidence that a loan is impaired. A loan is
considered impaired when management determines that it is probable that all amounts due according to the
original contractual terms will not be collected.

When a loan has been identified as impaired, the carrying amount of the loan is reduced by recording specific
provisions for credit losses to its estimated recoverable amount, which is the present vaiue of expected future
cash flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the loan.

For non-performing and impaired loans the accrual of interest income based on the original terms of the loan
is discontinued. Jamaican banking regulations require that interest on non-performing loans be taken into
account on the cash basis. IFRS require that interest income on non-performing loans be accrued, to the
extent collectible, and that the increase in the present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time be
reported as interest income. The difference between the Jamaican regulatory basis and IFRS was assessed
to be immaterial.

Write-offs are made when all or part of a loan is deemed uncollectible or is forgiven. Write-offs are charged
against previously established provisions for credit losses and reduce the principal amount of a loan.

Recoveries in part or in full of amounts previously written-off are credited to provision for credit losses in
arriving at net profit or loss.

Statutory and other regulatory loan loss reserve requirements that exceed the amounts required under IFRS
are dealt with in a non-distributable loan loss reserve as an appropriation of retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

@)

o

(k)

(O]

(m)

Financial assets

Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale categories. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled with 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-
current.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables either meet the definition of
loans and receivables at the date of acquisition, or at the date of reclassification from another category. The
Bank reclassifies certain financial assets to loans and receivables when the markets for these securities are
inactive. The Bank has elected to reclassify financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables back to the
available-for-sale category once the markets for these securities become active again.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
classified in any other category.

in this category or not

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date — the date on which an
asset is delivered to or by the Bank — and are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Changes in the fair value of investments classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When investments classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in arriving at net profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale
securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in arriving at net profit or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in arriving at net profit or loss when the
Bank’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Bank establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same and discounted cash flow analysis making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment
The Bank assesses at the date of each statement of financial position whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such

evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in arriving at net profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and

recognised in arriving at net profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments recognised in arriving at
net profit or loss are not reversed.

Debt securities are considered impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that
loss event or events has an impact on the estimated future cash flows that can be reliably estimated. The
amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. For debt
securities carried at amortised cost, the asset's carrying amount is reduced and the amount of loss is
recognised in arriving at net profit or loss. For debt securities classified as available-for-sale, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in arriving at net profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in arriving at net profit or loss in the current year. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
arriving at net profit or loss for the current year.

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis at such rates as will write off the carrying value of the
assets over the shorter of their expected useful lives or the lease period. The expected useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 — 10 years

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount and are taken into account in determining operating profit.

Repairs and maintenance expenses are charged in arriving at net profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the assessed standard of performance of the
existing asset will flow to the Bank. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the
related asset.

Intangible assets
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three years.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Bank participates in a defined contribution plan whereby it pays contributions to a privately administered
fund. Once the contributions have been paid, the Bank has no further payment obligations. The regular
contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are due and are included in staff costs.

The Bank also participates in a defined benefit plan operated by the ultimate parent company. The scheme is
generally funded through payments to a trustee-administered fund as determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit to be
provided, usually as a function of one or more factors such as age, years of service or compensation.

The asset or liability in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the difference between the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position and the fair value of the plan
assets, together with adjustments for actuarial gains and losses and past service cost.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The defined benefit obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future outflows
using discount rates based on market yields on government securities that have terms to maturity
approximating the term of the related liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, changes in actuarial assumptions and
amendments to pension plans are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in arriving at net profit or loss.

Other post-employment benefit obligations

The entitiement to these benefits is usually based on the employee remaining in service up to post-
employment age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the period of employment, using accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit
pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Equity compensation benefits

The ultimate parent company operates an equity-settied, share-based compensation plan, in which the Bank
participates. Stock options in the ultimate parent company are granted to management and key employees of
the Bank. The fair value of the employee’s services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of non-market vesting conditions.
Options are granted at the market price of the shares on the date of the grant and are exercisable at that
price. Options are exercisable beginning three months from the date of the grant and have a contractual
option term of up to six years. When options are exercised, the proceeds received, net of any transaction
costs are passed on to the ultimate parent company and credited to Stock Option Reserve.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal post-
employment date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Bank recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the
employment of the current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or
to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the date of the statement of financial position are discounted to present
value.

Incentive plans

The Bank recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration
return on equity for the year after certain adjustments. The Bank recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Income taxes
Taxation expense in the statement of comprehensive income comprises current and deferred tax charges.

Current tax charges are based on taxable profits for the year, which differ from the profit before tax
reported because it excludes items that are taxable or deductible in other years, and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Bank’s liability for current tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted at
the date of the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax is the tax that is expected to be paid or recovered on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases. Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates are used in the
determination of deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax expense or benefit in arriving at net profit or loss,
except where they relate to items recorded in other comprehensive income, they are aiso charged or
credited to other comprehensive income.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially as the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Any differences between
proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value are recognised in arriving at net profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective yield method.

Guarantees, letters of credit and undertakings

These represent the Bank’s potential liability, for which there are equal and offsetting claims against its
customers in the event of a call on these commitments. Where the liabilities are not considered contingent,
these amounts are reflected in the statement of financial position.

Where the Bank’s liabilities are considered to be contingent, the amounts are disclosed in Note 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n) Income and expense recognition

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in arriving at net profit or loss for all interest-bearing
instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method based on the actual purchase price.
Interest income includes coupons earned on fixed income investments and accrued discounts or premiums
on treasury bills and other instruments.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering the contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Jamaican banking regulations stipulate that, where collection of interest income is considered doubtful or
payment is outstanding for 90 days or more, interest should be taken into account on the cash basis. IFRS
require that when loans become doubtful of collection, they are written down to their recoverable amounts
and interest income is thereafter recognised based on the rate of interest that was used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount. The difference between the
regulatory and IFRS bases of interest recognition was assessed to be immaterial.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Loan origination fees for loans which are likely to be drawn down are deferred, together with
related direct costs, and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest on the loan. Fees and
commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party are
recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

Financial Risk Management

The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Bank’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on
the Bank’s financial performance.

The Bank’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date
information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes
in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk
management framework. The following committees were established for managing and monitoring risks:

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is a management committee responsible for monitoring and
formulating investment portfolios and investment strategies for the Bank. ALCO is also responsible for
monitoring adherence to trading limits. Other responsibilities of ALCO include:

Monitoring management’'s adherence to policies and procedures that are established to ensure that the
Bank has adequate liquidity at all times;

Monitoring and measuring capital adequacy for regulatory and business requirements;

Establishing asset and liability pricing policies to protect the liquidity structure as well as assess the
probability of various liquidity shocks and interest rate scenarios;

Monitoring the statement of financial position and ensuring business strategies are consistent with liquidity
requirements;

Establishing and monitoring relevant liquidity ratios and statement of financial position targets; and

Ensuring full compliance with the Bank’s Asset and Liability Manual as it relates to the management of
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

The minutes of the ALCO meetings are submitted to the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Bank’s risk management
policies and procedures, reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Bank and monitors regulatory compliance. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by the
Internal Audit department of the ultimate parent company. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee manages the Bank’s credit portfolio. The Chairman and the members of the committee
are charged with the responsibility to approve credit within their designated limits and make recommendations
to the Board of Directors.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risk
includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.

@)

Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that its customers, clients or counterparties will
cause a financial loss for the Bank by failing to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk is the
most important risk for the Bank’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to
credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in investment and lending activities.

For its investment activities, the Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the
amount of risk accepted in relation to a single counterparty or groups of related counterparties and to
geographical and industry segments. For its lending activities, consideration is given to sectoral exposure, as
well as to counterparty and group risk. Additionally, much emphasis is placed on determining the adequacy of
cash flow being generated by the counterparty to meet repayment terms, the availability of tangible security
that may be realised as a secondary source of payment in the event that cash flow is impaired, and the
timeliness and quality of financial information available on/from the counterparty/customer to assist in
predicting its future performance.

Credit-related commitment risks also arise from guarantees/bonds issued by the Bank which may require
payment on behalf of customers. Such guarantees/bonds are issued after analysis of the customers making
the request to ensure that they have a good record of performance in the activity for which the bond or
guarantee is being sought, as well as the taking of security as a secondary source of recovery in case of
need. Generally, guarantees/bonds expose the Bank to similar risks as loans, and these are mitigated by the
same control policies and processes.

Credit review process
The Bank has established a credit quality review process involving regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers and other counterparties to meet interest and principal repayment obligations.

Loans

The Bank assesses the probabitity of default of individual counterparties using internal ratings. The Bank’s
clients are segmented into three rating classes. The Bank’s rating scale, which is shown below, reflects the
range of default probabilities defined for each rating class.

The Bank’s internal classification is as follows:

Rating Description

1 Low Risk - excellent credit history

2 Standard Risk - generally abides by credit terms

3 Sub Standard Risk - late paying with some level of impairment

Exposure to credit risk is managed in part by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantees.
Counterparty limits are established by the use of a credit classification system, which assigns each
counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision. The credit quality review process
allows the Bank to assess the potential loss as a result of the risk to which it is exposed and take corrective
action.

Investments

The Bank limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in liquid securities, with counterparties that
have high credit quality and Government of Jamaica securities. Accordingly, management does not expect
any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of the collateral required depends on the credit risk of the counterparty and the use of
professionally derived, estimable realisable values of security, assuming forced sale conditions. Guidelines
are implemented regarding the acceptability of different types of collateral, the lending margins against
forced sale values which will be used and the quality of work and experience from the professionals from
whom these valuations will be accepted.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- Loans — first demand mortgages over residential and commercial properties, first debenture charges
over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable and charges and
hypothecations over deposit balances and financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

- Securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions — cash or securities.

The Bank also obtains guarantees from parent companies for loans to their subsidiaries and from individual
shareholders for loans to their companies.

Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral held, during its annual review of the
individual credit facilities, as well as during its review of the provision for credit losses.

The worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank, without taking account of any collateral held or
credit enhancements, was as follows:

2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Cash at bank 2,986,321 3,051,241
Items in the course of collection from other banks 145,509 200,751
Securities purchased under resale agreements 212,347 548,483
Loans 15,829,964 13,481,699
Investment securities and pledged assets 13,120,763 11,385,738
Forward currency contracts 4,944 -
Other assets 101,360 65,704
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of undertaking 51,639 457,505
32,452,847 29,191,121

Credit risk exposures relating to items not on the statement of financial

position:

Guarantees and letters of credit 562,574 132,412
Loan commitments 2,898,656 2,887,375
3,461,230 3,019,787
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Impairment

The main considerations for loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or
interest are overdue by more than 90 days or there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of
counterparties, credit rating downgrades or infringement of the original terms of the contract.

The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two areas: individually assessed allowances and
collectively assessed allowances.

Individually assessed allowances are provided for financial assets that are above materiality thresholds,
based on a review conducted at least annually or more reguiarly when individual circumstances require.
Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred
loss at the date of the statement of financial position on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account.

Collectively assessed allowances are provided for portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually
below materiality thresholds; and losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified, by taking
into consideration historical losses on the portfolio, current economic conditions and expected receipts and
recoveries once impaired.

The Bank’s internal rating systems focus more on credit quality mapping from the inception of lending
activities. In contrast, impairment provisions are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for losses
that have been incurred at the date of the statement of financial position, based on objective evidence of
impairment. Due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in
the financial statements is usually lower than the amount determined from the expected loss model that is
used for internal operational management purposes.

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists
under IAS 39, based on the following criteria set out by the Bank:

Delinquency in contractual payments of principal and interest;

Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity ratio, net income percentage of sales);
Breach of covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The impairment provision shown in the statement of financial position at year end is derived from each of the
three internal rating grades. However, the majority of the impairment provision comes from the ‘Sub
Standard’ rating class. The table below shows the Bank’s loans and the associated impairment provision for
each internal rating class:

® 0 0 0 00

2013 2012
Impairment Impairment
Loans provision Loans provision
$'000 $’000 $’000 $°000
Low Risk 34,201 - 44,849 -
Standard Risk 15,422,259 - 12,972,600 -
Sub-Standard Risk 528,391 154,887 609,024 144,774
15,984,851 154,887 13,626,473 144,774
The credit quality of loans is summarised as foliows:
2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Neither past due nor impaired —
Low Risk 34,201 44,849
Standard Risk 15,297,964 12,722,349
15,332,165 12,767,198
Past due but not impaired 124,295 250,251
Impaired 528,391 609,024

15,984,851 13,626,473
Less: Provision for impairment (154,887) (144,774)

15,829,964 13,481,699

The ageing analysis of past due but not impaired loans was as follows:

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Less than 30 days 66,355 225,376
31 to 60 days 51,551 7,700
61 to 90 days 6,389 17,175
124,295 250,251

Concentration of credit risk

Loans

The majority of loans are extended to customers in Jamaica. The following table summarises the Bank’s
credit exposure for loans at their carrying amounts, as categorised by industry sector:

Number of loan accounts Credit exposure
2013 2012 2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Public sector 2 2 34,201 44,849
Financial institutions 10 6 95,931 792,926
Agriculture 10 3 251,960 178,882
Mining and quarrying 4 4 58,183 81,343
Manufacturing 44 42 982,850 903,917
Construction and land development 39 35 2,076,318 1,920,861
Transportation, storage and
communication 85 80 2,313,787 1,971,058
Electricity, gas and water 7 3 683,689 373,063
Distribution 91 86 2,413,251 2,070,984
Tourism 8 13 312,401 140,967
Entertainment 12 10 2,478 172,859
Professional and other services 320 146 2,415,845 1,573,371
individuals 11,748 8,917 4,189,070 3,256,619
12,380 9,347 15,829,964 13,481,699

Investment securities and pledged assets
The following table summarises the credit exposure for debt securities at their carrying amounts as
categorised by issuer:

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Government of Jamaica 9,934,529 11,385,738
Bank of Jamaica 436,229 -
Corporate 1,857,911 -
Issued by other governments 463,293 -
Placements with other banks 428,801 -
Securities purchased under resale agreements 212,347 548,483
13,333,110 11,934,221

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due.

Liquidity risk management process
The Bank’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by the Treasury
Department, includes:

(i) Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected
cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure funding if required;

(i) Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liquidated as
protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

(iii) Maintaining committed lines of credit;
(iv) Optimising cash returns on investments;
(v) Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements.

The most important of these is to maintain limits on the ratio of net liquid assets to customer liabilities;
and

(vi) Managing the concentration, profile and maturities of debt securities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week
and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected collection
date of the financial assets.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities are
fundamental to the management of the Bank. It is unusual for companies ever to be completely matched
since business transacted is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but can aiso increase the risk of loss.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Bank and its exposure to

changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
CONTINUED ON NEXT PA
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (¢) Market risk (continued)
Cash flows of financial instruments Currency risk (continued)
The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows (both interest and principal cash flows) of the Bank’s Foreign currency sensitivity . . .
financial assets and liabilities based on contractual repayment obligations. The Bank expects that, based on The following table indicates the currencies to which the Bank had significant exposure on its monetary
estimates made by management as determined by retention history, many customers will not request assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The table below represents management’'s assessment of
repayment on the earliest date the Bank could be required to pay. the possible change in foreign exchange rates and the impact on income. There is no direct impact on
2013 other components of equity. The sensitivity analysis represents outstanding foreign currency denominated
~hi 7 monetary items and adjusts their transiation for the possible change in foreign currency rates. The
Within 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over 5 No spec.lflc correlation of variables will have a significant effect on determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but
Months Months Years Years Maturity Total to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be on an individual basis
$’000 $°000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 P 9 : :
Financial assets 2013 2012
Cash and bank balances 3,434,875 - - - - 3,434,875 Change in Change in
Items in the course of collection from Currency Effect on Currency Effect on
other banks 145,509 - - - - 145,509 Rate Income Rate Income
Securities purchased under resale Yo $’000 Yo $’000
agreements 212,396 - - - - 212,396 Currency:
Loans 2,801,419 499,973 8,017,626 11,467,997 - 22,787,015 uss 15 5.750 10 13,527
Investment securities and pledged
assets 728,287 521,236 1,937,411 19,277,595 5,020 22,469,549 GBP 15 (11,513) 10 (10,985)
Forward currency contracts 4,944 - - - - 4,944 CANS 15 (1,398) 10 (4,187)
Other assets 101,360 - - - - 101,360 EURO 15 277 10 8,580
Guarantees, letters of credit and
letters of undertaking 46,337 5,302 - - - 51,639 Uss 1 (383) 1 (1,353)
Total financial assets 7,475,127 1,026,511 9,955,037 30,745,592 5,020 49,207,287 ’

i ial liabiliti GBP -1 768 -1 1,008
Financial liabilities 419
Customer deposits 18,327,604 3,279,287 2,929 - - 21,609,820 CANS -1 o3 1
Items in the course of payment 116,827 - - - - 116,827 EURO -1 (18) -1 (858)
Bank overdraft 30,796 - - - - 30,796 Int ¢ " isk

iti nterest rate ris,
Secu;gnneez;cggt:nder repurchase 2,250,196 809,485 1,000,380 _ _ 4,060,061 Ibnterest rafte hrisnk is i‘r??n rirskk tt?nat:art:; r\::tleuse or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
Short term loans 851,391 - - - - 851,391 ecause of changes arke )
Loans from specialised banks 123,884 360,542 1,144,198 64,855 - 1,693,479 The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates on
Other liabilities - - - - 262,264 262,264 its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may
Guarantees, letters of credit and reduce or create losse§ in the eyent that unex_pectgd movemengs arise. Floating rate instruments expose
letters of undertaking 46,337 5,302 - - - 51,639 ghe Bank to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Bank to fair value
Total financial liabilities 21,747,035 4,454,616 2,147,507 64,855 262,264 28,676,277 interest risk.
Total liquidity gap (14,271,908) (3,428,105) 7,807,530 30,680,737 (257,244) 20,531,010 The Bank’s interest rate risk policy requires it to manage interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate
Cumulative gap (14,271,908) (17,700,013) (9,892,483) 20,788,254 20,531,010 mix of fixed and variable rate instruments. The policy also requires it to manage the maturities of interest
bearing financial assets and liabilities. The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate re-
pricing that may be undertaken. These limits are monitored by the ALCO.
Within3 EXTXF] 3 t20152 o) 5N i The following tables summarise the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk. They include the Bank’s financial
M'onlg-us Mor?ths Ye:rs Y‘:aearrs ?’IZ?L?"?; ic Total instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
N $'000 $000 $000 $’oog $°000 tables represent those financial instruments whose interest rates change concurrently with a change in the
$'000 underlying interest rate basis.
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 3,626,449 - - - - 3,626,449 2013
Items in the course of collection Within 3 3to 12 Over 12 Non rate
from other banks 200,751 - - - - 200,751 months months months sensitive Total
Securities purchased under resale $°000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
agreements 549,305 - - - - 549,305 Financial assets
Loans 1,952,522 751,806 7,579,663 9,087,397 - 19,371,388 ! Se
Investment securities and pledged Cash {and bank balances . 1,306,462 - - 2,128,413 3,434,875
assets 1,824,527 486,824 3,976,606 13,485,397 5,020 19,778,374 items ;‘ﬂ lh: Ciurse of collection from 145.509 45.500
other banks - - - s 145,5
Other assets . 65.704 - - - - 65,704 Securities purchased under resale
Guarantees, letters of credit and agreements 212,347 - - " 212.347
letters of undertaking 446,580 10,925 - - - 457,505 Loans 2 800,966 463.434 12.565.564 15 829‘964
Total financial assets 8,665,838 1,249,555 11,556,269 22,572,794 5,020 44,049,476 Investment securities and pledged Rad . 2909, 1829,
Financial liabilities assets 939,319 498,471 11,682,973 5,020 13,125,783
Customer deposits 15,206,436 3,424,113 3,436 - - 18,633,985 Derivative financial instruments - - - 4,944 4,944
Items in the course of payment 116,520 - - - - 116,520 Other assets - - - 101,360 101,360
Bank overdraft 8,790 - - - - 8,790 Guarantees, letters of credit and
Derivative financial instruments 4,905 (1,483) - - - 3,422 letters of undertaking b - - 51,639 51,639
Securities sold under repurchase Total financial assets 5,259,094 961,905 24,248,537 2,436,885 32,906,421
agreements 2,898,573 937,252 - - - 3,835,825 Financial liabilities
Short term loans 838,905 - - - - 838,905 "
’ : Customer deposits 296,721 2. -
Loans from specialised banks 86,750 275,507 1,155,875 90,060 - 1,608,192 . 18,296 3,210,243 2,143 21,509,107
o Items in the course of payment - - - 116,827 116,827
Other liabilities 192,988 - - - - 192,988 Bank drait
Guarantees, letters of credit and ank overdral 30,796 - - - 30,796
letters of undertaking 446,580 10,925 - - - 457,505 Securities sold under repurchase
Total financial liabilities 19,800,447 4,646,314 1,159,311 90,060 - 25,696,132 agreements 2,245,706 787,069 908,229 - 3,941,004
Total liquidity gap (11,134,609) (3,396,759) 10,396,958 22,482,734 5,020 18,353,344 Short term loans 850,856 - - - 850,856
Cumulative gap (11,134,609) (14,531,368) (4,134,410) 18,348,324 18,353,344 Loans from specialised banks 100,616 294,640 1,085,543 - 1,480,799
Other liabilities - - - 262,264 262,264
The Bank is also able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and accessing additional Guarantees, letters of credit and
funding sources from its ultimate parent company and other financing institutions. letters °f. unc{ertakmg - - hd 51,639 51,639
(€) Market risk Total financial liabilities 21,524,695 4,291,952 1,995,915 430,730 28,243,292
C, arket ris . F g
I int
The Bank takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Total interest repricing gap (16,265,601) (3.330.047) 22,252,622 2,006,155 4,663,129
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arise from Cumulative gap (16,265,601)  (19,595,648) 2,656,974 4,663,129
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. Market risk is monitored by the Risk and
Compliance department which carries out extensive research and monitors the price movement of financial 2012
assets on the local and international markets. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. T
There has been no change to the Bank’s exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and Within 3 3to 12 Over 12 Non _r'ate
measures the risk. months months months sensitive Total
Currency risk $°000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because Financial assets
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Cash and bank balances 1,395,552 - - 2,230,897 3,626,449
The Bank manages its foreign exchange risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets and ftems in the course of collection from 200.751 200,751
liabilities is kept at an acceptable level by monitoring currency positions. The Bank further manages this risk other banks - - - 0, ’
by maximising foreign currency earnings, holding foreign currency balances and by entering into foreign Securities purchased under resale
currency forward contracts. The net currency exposure of financial assets and liabilities at 31 December was agreements 548,483 - - - 548,483
as follows:
Loans 1,917,614 700,673 10,863,412 - 13,481,699
2013 Investment securities and pledged 1,807,136 465,153 9,113,449 5,020 11,390,758
Jamaican$ uss GBP CANS Euro Total assets
J$’000 Js$’000 J$’000 J$’000 J$’000 J$’'000 Other assets - - - 65,704 65,704
Financial assets Guarantees, letters of credit and
Cash and bank balances 1,280,358  1,365.013 196,753 135,805 456,856 3,434,875 letters of undertaking - - - 457,505 457,505
Items in the course of collection from Total financial assets
othor bamke 23,184 122,191 134 - _ 145,500 ! a 5,668,785 1,165,826 19,976,861 2,959,877 29,771,349
Securities purchased under resale Financial liabilities
agreements - 212,347 - - - 212,347 Customer deposits 15,177,823 3,344,407 2,926 - 18,525,156
Loans 11,781,727 4,048,230 7 - - 15,829,964 N
Investment securities and pledged ltems in the course of payment - - - 116,520 116,520
assets 3,901,046 9,224,737 - - - 13,125,783 Bank overdraft 8,790 - _ _ 8.790
Derivative financial instruments - - 5,443 (499) - 4,944 R X o ' ’
Other assets 11,856 88,868 - 636 - 101,360 Derivative financial instruments - - - 3,422 3,422
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters Securities sold under repurchase
of undertaking 46,337 5.302 - - - 51,639 agreements 2,889,116 907,085 - - 3,796,201
Total financial assets 17.044,508 15,066,688 202,337 136,032 456,856 32,906,421 Short term loans 833,193 - - - 833,193
Financial liabilities -
o Loans from specialised banks 65,300 210,413 1,069,961 - 1,345,683
Customer deposits 8,619,116 11,971,297 317,226 147,568 453,900 21,509,107 N
Items in the course of payment 68,809 45,165 238 2,448 167 116,827 Other liabilities - - - 192,998 192,998
Bank overdraft - 30,796 - - - 30,796 Guarantees, letters of credit and _ _ _
Securities sold under repurchase letters of undertaking 457,505 457,505
agreements 2,104,779 1,836,225 - - - 3,941,004 Tot : PR
al financial liabilities
Short term loans 55,010 795,846 _ _ _ 850.856 o 1 : 18,974,231 4,461,905 1,072,887 770,445 25,279,468
Loans from specialised banks 1,192,799 288,000 - - - 1,480,799 Total interest repricing gap (13,305,446) (3,296,079) 18,903,974 2,189,432 4,491,881
Other liabilities 225,686 36,555 - . 23 262,264 i
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters Cumulative gap (13,305446) _ (16.601,525) 2302449 4,491,881
of undertaking 46,337 5,302 - - - 51,639 . N . N . . P
Total financial liabilities 12.512.536  15.009.186 317,464 150.016  454.090  28.943.292 IS:’;ra“t:)lej below summarises the average effective yields of interest rate-sensitive financial instruments by
Net financial position 4,731,972 57,502 (115,127) (13,984) 2,766 4,663,129 Y-
2012 2013
Jamaican$ uUss GBP CANS$ Euro Total Jamaican$ uss GBP CANS Euro
J$’000 J$’000 J$’000 J$’000 J$’000 J$’000 % % %o % %o

Financial assets Cash and bank balances 4.00 0.01 0.05 0.35 -

Cash and bank balances 1,472,216 1,943,061 77,424 72,320 61,428 3,626,449 Securities purchased under resaie R 2.80 N _ _

Items in the course of collection from agreements :

other banks 74,489 122,724 3,035 503 - 200,751 Loans 12.30 8.66 - - -
Securities purchased under resale "

agreements - 548,483 - - - 548,483 Investment securities 7.44 7.34 - - -
Loans 9,603,094 3,788,605 - - - 13,481,699 Customer deposits 291 1.77 1.50 0.45 0.07
Investment securities and pledged Securities sold under repurchase 7

assets 3,593,928 7,199,821 - - 597,009 11,390,758 agreements 95 3.93 - - -
Other assets 13,756 51,808 o4 47 - 65,704 Short term loans 6.90 2.97 - - -
Guarantees, letters of credit and .

letters of undertaking 72,193 385,312 - - - 457,505 Loans from specialised banks 6.93 5.40 - - -

Total financial assets 14,919,675 14,039,814 80,553 72,870 658,437 29,771,349

Financial liabilities 2012

Customer deposits 7,684,321 10,413,716 245629 122,575 58,915 18,525,156 Jamaican$ uss GBP CANS Euro

ltems in the course of payment 78,728 35,063 1,073 1,516 140 116,520 % % % % %

Bank overdraft - - - 8790 - 8,790 Cash and bank balances 3.80 0.01 0.05 0.32 -

Forward currency contracts - - (3.192) 1,711 4,903 3,422 Securities purchased under 4.07

Securities sold under repurchase agreemen - g - - -

agreements 1,489,442 1,841,001 - - 465,758 3,796,201 Lresale greements 14.18 9.71

Short term loans - 833,193 - B - 833,193 oans » : ) - ) N

Loans from specialised banks 1,040,160 305,523 ~ ~ . 1345683 Investment securities 8.20 8.25 - - 10.50

Other liabilities 166,986 23,095 1,816 1,082 19 192,098 Custo'n}er deposits 3.05 2.23 1.73 1.16 0.62

Guarantees, letters of credit and Securities sold under repurchase 6.30 4.47 ~ _ 4.69

letters of undertaking 72,193 385,312 - - - 457,505 agreements ' ) :

Total financial liabilities 10,531,830 13,836,903 245,326 135,674 529,735 25,279,468 Short term ioans - 5.18 - - -

Net financial position 4,387,845 202,911 (164,773) (62,804) 128,702 4,491,881 Loans from specialised banks 7.40 5.70 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

. N Financial inst ts b 't
(c) Market risk (continued) ® fnancialinstruments by categony Assets at

fair value

i H through
;ntterestt ratte r’Sk.l(.c;nt'nUEd) Loans and profit and Available
nierest rate sensiivity o ) o ' receivables loss for sale Total
The foliowing table indicates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000
variables held constant, on the Bank’s income and equity. As at 31 December 2013:
Cash and bank balances 3,434,875 - - 3,434,875
The sensitivity of income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on net income based on the Iltems in the course of collection from other
floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities. The sensitivity of equity is calculated by banks 145,509 - - 145,509
revaluing fixed-rate available-for-sale financial assets for the assumed changes in interest rates. The Se‘;‘;‘;‘ggfﬂg‘:‘;‘;hased under resale 212 347 B _ 212,347
correlations of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but to Loans 15 829’964 B _ 15 829'964
demonsérarfe the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be done on an individual basis. It should Investment securities and pledged assets _ 96,571 13,020,212 13.125.783
be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear. Forward currency contracts _ 4,944 _ 4.944
Other assets 101,360 - - 101,360
2013 2012 Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of
Change in undertaking 51,639 - - 51.639
Change in basis Total financial assets 19,775,694 101,515 13,029,212 32,906,421
basis points  Net Effect Net Effgct points Net Effect  Net Effect Loans and Available for
JMD/USD on Income on Equity JMD/USD on Income on Equity receivables sale Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $7000 $'000
As at 31 December 2012:
-100/-50 (11,920) 174,570 -100/-50 8,724 151,234 Cash and bank balances 3,626,449 - 3,626,449
+250/ +200 (18,082) (698,885) +400 / +250 (62,524) (618,279) "e'E: i:s‘he course of collection from other 200.751 200,751
n » - y
d Capital t Securities purchased under resale
(d) apital managemen agreements 548,483 - 548,483
N . . . . L -
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the oans - 13,481,699 13,481,699
statement of financial position, are: Investment securities and pledged assets - 11,390,758 11,390,758
Other assets 61,885 - 61,885
(i) To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the markets within which the Bank Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of
operates; undertaking 457,505 - 457,505
Total financial assets 18,376,772 11,390,758 29,767,530
(i) To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and Other
financial
(ili) To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business. liabilities at
amortised
Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by management and bi-monthly by cost Total
the Board. The required information is filed with the Bank of Jamaica on a quarterly basis. $°000 $’000
As at 31 December 2013:
The Bank of Jamaica requires the Bank to: .
Customer deposits 21,509,107 21,509,107
(i) Hold the minimum level of the regulatory capital as a percentage of total assets of 8% (2012 — 8%); Items in the course of payment 116,827 116,827
and Bank overdraft 30,796 30,796
(i) Maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets at or above 10% (2012 — 10%). Securities sold under repurchase agreements 3,941,004 3,941,004
Loans 2,331,655 2,331,655
The Bank’s regulatory capital is managed by the ALCO and is divided into two tiers: Other liabilities 262,264 262,264
. . 3 . . . Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of
(i) ;rner 1 ca;«talt: Ishare C_?pltal, §t§tut?ry r:;;ewelz fund, ret?_med egrnmgs reserve fund, accumulated undertaking 51,639 51,639
osses and net loss positions arising from fair value accounting; an ) I
P 9 9 Total financial liabilities 28,243,292 28,243,292
(ii) Tier 2 capital: general provisions for loan losses on assets limited to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.
Liabilities Other
The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to at fair value __financial
the nature of, and reflecting an estimate, of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and through liabilities at
counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off- profit and amortised
balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potentiai loss cost Total
losses. $°000 $°000 $°000
. . . . . o ) As at 31 December 2012:
The Bank complied with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject. Customer deposits = 18,525,156 18,525,156
(e) Fair value estimation Items in the course of payment - 116,520 116,520
F?,if value is the amou nf for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, Bank overdraft - 8,790 8,790
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Forward currency contracts 3,422 _ 3,422
The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments held as at 31 December that, subsequent to Securities sold under repurchase agreements - 3,796,201 3,796,201
initial recognition, are measured at fair value. The financial instruments are grouped into levels 1 to 3 based Loans - 2,178,876 2,178,876
on the degree to which the fair value is observable, as follows: Other liabilities - 192,998 192,998
Guarantees, letters of credit and letters of
 Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for undertaking - 457,505 457,505
identical instruments; ) ) Total financial liabilities 3,422 25,276,046 25,279,468
* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1) thatj are observable for the instrument, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from 4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
prices); an
 Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the
instrument that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $’000 $’°000 $°000 Impairment losses on loans
2013 The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in arriving at net profit or loss, the Bank makes judgements as to whether
Available-for-sale investment securities — there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
. _ = from loans. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
Issued by the Government of Jamaica 9,837,938 9,837,958 payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
Issued by other Government - 463,293 - 463,293 assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
Corporate bonds - 1,857,911 - 1,857,911 characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future
| ) ’ ! ’ ’ cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
Placements with other banks - 428,821 - 428,821 flows are reviewed reguliarly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actuai loss experience.
Certificates of deposit - 436,229 - 436,229
Pension and other post-employment benefits
The cost of these benefits and the present vaiue of the pension and the other post-employment liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or depend on a number of factors that are to be determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.
- The assumptions used in determining the net periodic cost or income for pension and other post-employment
loss b fits include th ted i 1 o f rets th i nt plan assets, the di t rat d, in th
: H enetits include e expecle ong-term rate of return on e releva S, iscount rate ang, in e
Pljt optfon issued by the Government of - 96,571 - 96,571 case of the medical benefits, the expected rate of increase in medical costs. Any changes in these assumptions
anaica will impact the net periodic cost or income recorded for pension and other post-employment benefits and may
Forward currency contracts - 4,944 - 4,994 affect planned funding of the pension plans. The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined on a
~ 13,125,707 _ 13,125,707 uniform basis, considering long-term historical returns, asset aliocation and future estimates of long-term

investment returns. The Bank determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, which
represents the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
2012 outflows expected to be required to setile the pension and other post-employment benefit obligations. In
; . - determining the appropriate discount rate, the Bank considered the interest rates of government securities that
Available-for-sale investment securities — are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity

Issued by the Government of Jamaica - 11,385,738 - 11,385,738 approximating the terms of the related pension lability. The expected rate of increase of medical costs has
been determined by comparing historical relationship of the actual medical cost increases with the rate of
inflation in the respective economy. Other key assumpticns for the pension and other post-employment benefits

Financial assets at fair value through profit or costs and credits are based in part on current market conditions.
loss -
Forward currency contracts _ _ Fair value of financial instruments
4 (3.422) (3,422) In the absence of quoted market prices, the fair value of a significant proportion of the Bank’s financial
- 11,382,316 - 11,382,316 instruments was determined using generally accepted alternative methods. The values derived from applyving

these methods are significantly affected by the underlying assumptions used concerning both the amounts and
timing of future cash flows and the discount rates. Considerable judgement is required in interpreting market

There were no transfers between levels during the year. data to arrive at estimates of fair values. Consequently, the estimates arrived at may be significantly different

The movement in securities classified as Level 3 during the year was as follows: from the actual price of the instruments in an arm’s length transaction.
2013 2012 Income taxes
$°000 $°000 Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. The Bank recognises liabiiities
At start of year - 63,976 for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
Disposals _ (63,976) outcome of these matters is different frgm th_e amounl§ th_at were initially recordgd, _suc_h differences will impact
i the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The Bank also
At end of year - - recognises deferred tax assets on tax losses carried forward as it anticipates making future taxable income to
offset these losses.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of 5. Cash and Bank Balances
the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those 2013 2012
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted $°000 $°000
market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. The Notes and coins 448,554 575,208
Bank did not hold any of these instruments at the date of the statement of financial position. Accounts with foreign banks 693,076 690,563
The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation Balances with the Bank of Jamaica, other than statutory reserves 4,546 344,859
techniques. These valuation technigues maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and Included in cash and cash equivalents 1,146,176 1,610,630
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument Statutory reserves with the Bank of Jamaica 2,197,310 1,952,395
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. This category includes certificates of deposit and Cash held n | and oth icted h 9 63.424
bonds issued by the Government of Jamaica, indicative prices of which are obtained from regular, publicly ash held as collateral and other restricted cash accounts 1,389 42
available quotes by reputable dealers and brokers. 3,434,875 3,626,449
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Statutory reserves with the Bank of Jamaica are held in compliance with Section 14(1) of the Banking Act, which
Level 3. This category includes certain corporate debt securities, the fair values of which are determined requires that every licensee maintains a cash reserve with the Bank of Jamaica of not less than 5% (2012 — 5%)
based on the prices of recent redemptions of the bonds. of its prescribed liabilities. The reserve for Jamaican dollar prescribed liabilities is held on a non-interest-earning
basis. No portion of the cash reserve is available for investment, lending or other use by the Bank. The actual
The following methods and assumptions have been used in determining the fair values of financial required ratio at year end was 12% (2012 — 12%) for Jamaican dollar cash reserves and 9% (2012 — 9%) for
instruments that are not remeasured at fair value after initial recognition: foreign currency cash reserves.
e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments. If quoted prices are not available, then fair The current portion of cash and bank balances is classified as cash and cash equivalents of $1,146,176,000
values are estimated on the basis of pricing models or other recognised valuation techniques, such as (2012 - $1,610,630,000)

discounted cash flow analysis.
6. Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements
e The fair value of liquid assets and other assets maturing within one year is assumed to approximate their . h m i G " . -
carrying amount. This assumption is applied to liquid assets and the shortterm elements of all other The Bank enters into reverse repurchase agreements collatera ised by' overqment © Jaf“a‘ca securities and
. ) IR Bank of Jamaica certificates of deposit. These agreements may result in credit exposure in the event that the

financial assets and financial liabilities. ; N R P .
counterparty to the transaction is unable to fulfil its contractual obligations. The balance in the statement of

e The fair value of variable rate financial instruments issued at market terms is assumed to approximate financial position includes interest receivable of $130,000 (2012 — $2,357,000).

their carrying amounts. CONTINUED ON NEXT PA




FIRST
GLOBY?:
BANK

i
Your Commercial Bank from GraceiKennedy

7. Loans 11. Intangible Assets
2013 2012 Total
$’000 $’000 $’000
Total loans 15,891,835 13,534,959 Cost -
Less provision for credit losses (154,887) (144,774) 1 January 2012 307,868
15,736,948 13,390,185 Additions — 146,419
) 31 December 2012 454,287
Interest receivable 93.016 91,514 Additions 165.047
15,829,964 13,481,699 31 December 2013 619,334
Amortisation -
The current portion of loans amounted to $3,264,399,000 (2012 — $2,618,287,000). 1 January 2012 222 369
B L N . B Amortisation charge for the year 24,746
The movement in the provision for credit losses determined under the requirements of IFRS was as follows: —_—
31 December 2012 247,115
2013 2012 Amortisation charge for year 12,458
$°000 $°000 31 December 2013 259,573
Batance at beginning of year 144,774 126,971 Net Book Value -
31 December 2013 359,761
N . 31 D b 2012
Provided during the year 61,618 49,496 ecember RS- £ % 4=
Recoveries (14,160) (15,046) Included in the balance at 31 December 2013 is software with a value of $354,682,000 (2012 - $195,365,000)
. . . which is in development. These amounts are not yet available for use and have not been amortised.
Net amount charged in arriving at net profit or loss 47,458 34,450
., N 12. Deferred Income Taxes
Net loan balances written-off during the year (37,345) (16,647)
Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of
Balance at end of year 154,887 144,774 3314%. The movement in the deferred income tax balance was as follows:
Restated
The aggregate amount of non-performing loans on which interest was not being accrued amounted to 2013 2012
$528,391,000 (2012 — $609,024,000). . $’000 $’000
At beginning of year, as restated 437,069 410,171
The provision for credit losses determined under Bank of Jamaica regulatory requirements was as follows: Deferred tax charged in arriving at net profit or loss (Note 30) (157,608) (729)
Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income (Note 30) 91,352 27,627
2013 2012 At end of year 370,813 437,069
$°000 $°000 . . X . n . i
Specific provisions 517,536 407,662 cli)‘?ffeergige;ax recognised in the statement of financial position was attributable to the following temporary
General provision 154,059 129,536 Restated
2013
671,595 537,198 $’000 $’000
Tax losses carried forward 285,208 424,556
The excess of the regulatory provision over the IFRS provision of $516,708,000 (2012 — $392,424,000) is Post-employment benefits 63,408 98,102
i in a non-distri le loan loss reserve and iation of retained ni R Differences between IFRS and BOJ specific
included o] stributable lo [o} treated as an appropriation of retained earnings (Note 22) Srovieions for loan losses (120,883) (87,629)
8. Investment Securities and Pledged Assets Accelerated tax depreciation 25,129 26,920
Fair value of investment securities 104,771 (31,766)
Other 13,180 6,886
s2013 2012 370,813 437,069
000 $’000
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value: Deferred tax assets include $152,528,000 (2012 — $56,887,000) which is expected to be recovered within 12
months.
Issued by the Government of Jamaica —
Deferred tax assets have been recognised on tax losses carried forward as the Bank is projected to make
Global bonds 3,230,836 5,012,288 sufficient profits to utilise these tax losses. Subject to agreement with Tax Administration Jamaica, losses
Benchmark investment notes 3,308,563 3,538,486 available for offset against future profits amount to $855,623,000 (2012 — $1,273,669,000).
Benchmark USD investment notes 3,108,558 2,586,079 The deferred tax charged in arriving at net profit or loss is attributable to the following temporary differences:
9,647,957 11,136,853 2013 Res*;:ﬁdz
Bank of Jamaica 430,155 - $’000 $’000
|ssued by other government 447.784 _ Tax losses carried forward (139,348) (58,598)
Placements with other banks 424,188 - Post-employment bensfits 10494 7.o16
! Differences between IFRS and BOJ specific provisions
Corporate bonds 1,822,919 - for loan losses (33,254) 26,397
12,773,003 11,136,853 Accelerated tax depreciation (1,791) 23,109
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: Other 6,291 447
Embedded put option issued by Government of Jamaica 96,571 - (157,608) (729)
Available-for-sale securities, at cost less impairment: The deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income is attributable to the following temporary differences:
Unquoted equities 5,020 5,020 2013 Restated
2012
12,874,594 11,141,873 $’000 $’000
Interest receivable 251,189 248,885 Realised (losses)/ gains on available-for-sale investments (82,338) 1,348
13.125,783 11.390,758 Unrealised gains on available-for-sale investments 218,878 13,583
Less: Pledged " 5.333.349 4.614.386 Realised (losses)/gains on pension re-measurement (45,188) 12,696
ess: Pledged assets (5, ) ) (4, ) ) 91,352 27,627
7,792,434 6,776,372
13. Other Assets
The current portion of investment securities amounted to $1,437,790,000 (2012 — $2,272,289,000). 2013 2012
$’000 $’000
1E'(C,nbgddidhp'|-/dt option . Cofu debt . hich g Feb 2013 " " Withholding tax recoverable 63,993 114,395
e Ban olds certain Government of Jamaica debt securities which were issued in February and mature s
in February 2024. The terms of these securities contain an investor put option exercisable in February 2018 Due from fellow SUbS'd'af'eS 3,382 3,232
under which the holder may require the Government of Jamaica to redeem the securities at 100% of the principal Prepayments and deposits 50,364 44,999
value plus any accrued interest. The initial recognition of the option is included in the determination of the “Loss Other 93,628 58,653
on debt exchange transactions” and gains and losses on subsequent revaluations of the option are reflected in 211,367 221,279
“Gain/(loss) on investment activities”. N
14. Customer Deposits
9. Forward cu"encv Contracts The customer deposit portfolio was comprised as follows:
Foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at year end, which are to be settled in United States dollars, were Number of deposits V;")‘:g of deposits 5675
as follows: 2013 2012 $’000 $’000
Financial institutions 161 140 2,167,235 1,676,391
As at 31 December 2013 Commercial and business enterprises 3,173 2,328 10,160,948 6,207,513
Notional Fair Personal 15,688 12,619 8,814,540 5,526,201
Settlement dates Obligation amounts values Other 286 879 283,434 5,023,407
000 $’000 19,308 15,966 21,426,157 18,433,512
1
31 July 2013 - 28 February 2014 Buy GBP 750 5,443 Interest payable TR s et en
10 September 2013- 24 February 2014 Buy CAN 200 (499) - - - -
4‘944 The non-current portion of customer deposits amounted to $2,143,000 (2012 — $2,925,000).
15. Short Term Loans
As at 31 December 2012 s%g;g sgg;g
Notional Fair Loans with original maturities of 90 days or less —
Settlement dates Obligation amounts values National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited 55,000 -
‘000 $’000 Citibank NA 477,212 -
10 January 2013 - 11 March 2013 Sell EURO 1,100 (4,903) . 532,212 -
1t t bl 10 -
8 January 2013 - 10 January 2013 Sell GBP 25 2) I” el"ff dp?y: ; and cash equivalents 35355
ncluae n ca i ’ -
25 February 2013- 13 May 2013 Buy CAN 760 (1,711)
14 January 2013 - 21 May 2013 Buy GBP 1,150 3,194 Loan with original maturity of 120 days —
(3,422) Citibank NA 318,141 833,073
Interest payable 493 120
Fair values were determined based on the difference between the agreed settlement rates and the spot rates at 318,634 833,193
the date of the statement of financial position. 850,856 833,193
) ) . ) . . ) 16. Loans from Specialised Banks
Gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts are recognised in gains on foreign exchange translation
and trading in the statement of comprehensive income These loans are primarily for the purpose of on-lending to customers who meet certain requirements of these
. banks and are to be used for eligible enterprises and projects. The balance at year end was comprised as follows:
10. Property, Plant and Equipment 2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Equipment, (a) Development Bank of Jamaica Limited 1,382,760 1,176,231
Furniture (b) National Export-Import Bank of Jamaica Limited 21,872 36,662
Leasehold Computer and Motor Work-in- (c) Inter-American Investment Corporation 74,857 130,678
Improvements Equipment Fixtures Vehicles progress Total 1,479,489 1,343,571
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 Interest payable 1.310 2112
1,480,799 1,345,683
Cost -
The current portion of amounts due to specialised banks was $ 395,256,000 (2012 — $275,722,000).
1 January 2012 149,214 120,372 149,602 23,552 144,700 587,440
. ’ a) The loans from Development Bank of Jamaica are granted in both Jamaican and United States Dollars and
Additions 6,591 6,788 5,073 - 60,176 78,628 are utilised by the Bank to finance customers with viable projects in the productive sectors of the economy.
T £ 65.215 1538 40.900 (107 653) These loans are for terms up to 10 years and are at rates ranging from 4 — 10%.
ransfers X , - -
. . b) The loans from National Export-import Bank of Jamaica are granted in Jamaican dollars and are utilised by
31 December 2012 221,020 128,698 195,575 23,552 97,223 666,068 the Bank to finance customers with viable projects in the productive sectors of the economy. The loans are
. for terms up to 4 years and at rates of 8 — 9%.
Additions 6,790 24,338 12,619 7,995 6,068 57,810
c) This represents a United States Dollar facility of US$3,000,000 with an interest rate of 6.50%. The facility
Transfers (1,256) - - - 1,256 - expires 15 October 2014.
Disposals - - (28,433) - - (28,433) 17. Pensions and Other Employee Benefit Obligations
31 December 2013 226,554 153,036 179,761 31,647 104,547 695,445 The Bank participates in a defined contribution pension scheme started by the ultimate parent company. The
scheme is open to employees hired on or after 1 April 2010. Employees contribute 5% of pensionable earnings
Depreciation - with the option to contribute an additional 5%. The employer’s contributions are currently set at 10%. The Bank’s
contribution for the year was $16,981,000 (2012 - $15,727,000).
1 January 2012 75'890 111'025 81’004 19‘892 - 287’811 The Bank also participates in a defined benefit pension plan operated by the ultimate parent company. The plan,
- which commenced on 1 January 1975, is funded by employees’ contributions at 5% of salary with the option to
Charge for year 22’971 10’000 12’227 1‘220 46‘418 contribute an additional 5%, and employer’s contributions at 0.5%, as recommended by independent actuaries.
- Pension at normal post-employment age is based on 2% per year of pensionable service of the average of the
31 December 2012 98‘861 121,025 93,231 21,112 334'229 highest three years’ annual salary during the last ten years of service. This scheme was closed to new members
Charge for year 18,633 12,931 16,741 2,819 - 51,124 as at 31 Mareh 2010.
. - . - _ The Board of Trustees of the pension fund is comprised of representatives from both the employer and members
DISposalS (28'188) (28’188) of the plan. The Board of Trustees of the pension fund is required by law to act in the interest of the fund and all
relevant stakeholders. The Board of Trustees of the pension fund is responsible for the investment policy with
31 December 2013 117’494 133’956 81 '784 23'931 - 357'165 regard to the assets of the fund. The funds are managed by First Global Financial Services Limited
Net Book Value - The Bank also participates in a number of other post-employment benefit plans, including group-life, insured and
31 December 2013 109,060 19,080 97.977 7616 104.547 338 280 self-insured health care, gratuity and other supplementary plans. These plans are not funded.
, ) , , , ,
The defined benefit plans are valued annually on 31 December by independent actuaries.
31 December 2012 122,159 7,673 102,344 2,440 97,223 331,839
CONTINUED ON NEXT PA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

17. Pensions and Other Employee Benefit Obligations (Continued) 17. Pensions and Other Employee Benefit Obligations (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position were determined as follows: Risks i d with p. ion plans and other employee benefit plans (continued)
Other post-employment Changes in bond yields o o . ) )
Pension benefits A decrease in Government of Jamaica bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially
Restated Restated offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
estate estate
2013 2012 2013 2012 Inflation risk
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 Higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities in the event that discretionary pension increases are granted. The
Fair value of plan assets 826,686 598,578 - - majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by fixed interest securities or loosely correlated with inflation,
Present value of funded obligations (826,686) (737.213) (190,223) (155,666) meaning that an increase in inflation will reduce the surplus or create a deficit.
Liability in the statement of financial Life expectancy
pos)i/tion - (138,635) (190,223) (155,666) The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life
expectancy will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities. This is particularly significant, where inflationary
i i i itivity t han: in lif t; .
The amounts recognised in arriving at net profit or loss, in staff costs, were as follows: increases result in higher sensitivity to ¢l ges in life expectancy
The Board of Trustees is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the plan’s risk
Other post-employment management framework. The Trustees have established an Investment Committee for managing and
Pension benefits monitoring the overall risk management process, as well as implementing policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. The Committee is
Restated Restated responsible for the formulating and monitoring of investment portfolios and investment strategies for the plan.
2,013 %012 2,013 2,012 The Committee is also responsible for the approval and monitoring of appropriate trading limits, reports and
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 compliance controls to ensure that the mandate is properly followed.
c t i 65,268 58,157 25,094 22, i L )
urrent service cos.t . 2,747 Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis and the current agreed contribution rate is 0.02% of
Interest cost on obligation 85,026 66,672 18,940 15,087 pensionable salaries. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 31 December 2016. The Bank
Interest income on plan assets (63,622) (49,031) - - considers thgt the contri_bution rates set at thg last valua_tion d?te to be _suffi_cien( to prevent a deficit and that
Past service cost B _ (12,028) (10,526) regular contributions, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.
Adjustment to Plan Assets (86,672) (77,389) - - The average duration of the post-employment benefit obligation is as follows:
- (1,591) 32,006 27,308 Plans Years
N \ 11.6
The actual return on plan assets was $134,758,000 (2012 — $23,487,000). Gratuity Plan
Group Life Plan 14.4
The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets Insured Group Health Plan 19.2
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross R 17.3
redemption yields as at the date of the statement of financial position. Expected returns on equity and property Pension Plan -
investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets. Self Insured Health Plan 13.7
i 7.4
Expected contributions for the year ending 31 December 2014 amount to $19,578,000. Superannuation Plan
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension and other post-employment benefits as at 31 December
The movement in the fair value of plan assets was as follows: 2013 is:
" Less than 1 2to 5 Over 5
Pension Year Years Years Total
$2°13 $2012 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
000 000 i 4
Pension benefits 3,841 32,008 10,660,455 10,696,304
Balance at start of year, as restated 598,578 482,924 Other employee benefits 10,885 10,844 1,664,653 1,686,382
Employees’ contributions 33,352 29,794 Total 14,726 42,852 12,325,108 12,382,686
Employer’s contributions 115 195
Interest income on plan assets 63,622 49,031 18. Other Liabilities
Benefits paid (26,788) (15,211) 2:013 2’01§
Additional assets assigned to the Bank 86,672 77,389 Asset tax 4ﬁ gg? 32 339
Re-measurements of plan assets 71,135 (25,544) Due to fellow subsidiaries 23,956 3,173
Balance at end of year 826,686 598,578 Other accruals 95,079 57,716
Staff vacation and bonus accruals 115,928 89,940
The distribution of plan assets for the pension was as follows: 2013 2012 Trade payables 27,301 42.169
$°000 $°000 Withholding tax payable 17,066 16,436
Equities 144,919 95,071 320,651 245,883
Government of Jamaica securities 458, .21
Oth debt Tm s curty 22 ig; 32? §7Z Total balance falls due within 12 months of the year end.
er debt securities X s
Other 187,098 118,912 19. Share Capital
826,686 598,578 2013 2012
$’000 $’000
The movement in the present value of funded obligations was as follows: Authorised —
629,485,000 ordinary shares
Present value of funded c‘;::"'er"::’s';seh"l ot 100,000 convertible preference shares
-employmen
Pension benefits
2013 2012 2013 2012 Issued and fully paid —
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 628,585,000 ordinary shares of no par value 1,527,685 1,527,685
Balance at start of year 737,213 586,378 155,666 129,014 100,000 non-redeemable convertible preference shares 886,496 886,496
Current service cost 65,268 58,157 25,094 22,747 2,414,181 2,414,181
Employees’ contributions 33,352 29,794 - -
Convertible preference shares
Interest cost 85,026 66,672 18,940 15,087 In April 2009, the Bank issued 100,000 5.5% non-voting, non-redeemable, non-cumulative, convertible preference
Benefits paid (26,788) (15,211) 407) 1,775) shares to International Finance Corporation (IFC) for a cash consideration of US$10 million. These shares are
i each convertible into 1,536.55 ordinary shares. After their third anniversary of ownership by IFC, these preference
Past service cost vested - - (12,028) (10.526) shares are convertible to ordinary shares at IFC’s option under certain conditions. The shares may, however, be
Re-measurements: converted at any time if they are owned by a member of the GraceKennedy Group. If there is a Change in Control
Losses from changes in _ 21219 _ 3.060 of the Bank as defined by the agreement, the shares will be immediately converted into ordinary shares.
demographic assumptions ’ ’

: P Declaration of dividends on these preference shares is at the discretion of, and requires approval from, the Bank’s
(%?Agiz:gfzzzlﬁ;’;gz:r‘ges n (10,814) (26,976) 15,048 8,761 Board of Directors. Such declarations are possible only if there are Available Distributable Profits, as defined by the

N N agreement. Dividends on ordinary shares are subordinate to dividends on these preference shares. Additionally,
Experience gains and losses (56,571) 17,180 (12,090) (10,711) the preference shareholders are not entitled to further distributions.
Balance at end of year 826,686 737,213 190,223 155,666 In the event of liquidation, preference shareholders are entitled to the aggregate paid-up Share Subscription Price,
as defined by the agreement, plus accrued and unpaid preferred dividends after all debt obligations have been
The composition of the liability recognised in relation to the other post-employment obligations in the statement met. These preference shareholders have priority over the ordinary shareholders, subject to the availability of
of financial position is as follows: adequate net assets.
2013 2012 20. Reserve Fund
$’000 $°000 ) o
Gratuity Plan 72.169 73.683 This fund is maintained in accordance with Section 8 of the Banking Act which requires that a minimum of 15% of
” . ’ ’ the net profits, as defined by the Act, of the Bank be transferred to the reserve fund until the amount of the fund is
Group Life Plan 49,734 33,234 equal to 50% of the paid-up capital of the Bank and thereafter 10% of the net profits until the amount of the fund is
Insured Group Health 66,854 44,670 equal to the paid-up capital of the Bank. During the year the Bank transferred $83,022,000 (2012 - $57,737,000) to
Self Insured Health Plan 1,466 2,384 this reserve.
Superannuation Plan - 1,695 .
Liability in the statement of financial 21. Fair Value Reserve
position 190,223 155,666

This represents the net unrealised losses on the revaluation of investment securities amounting to $314,317,000

L . . (2012 — gains of $95,301,000), and is shown net of atiributable deferred taxation credit of $104,774,000
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: (2012 — charge of $31,766,000).

2013 2012
Discount rate 9.50% 10.50% 22. Loan Loss Reserve
Long term inflation rate 5.50% 6.00% This i distrib bi . n £ th - f . ) X
Future salary increases 6.00% 7.50% his is a non-‘ (sytn utable reserve_ representing the excess of the p_rowsron or credit losses determined using the
? N Bank of Jamaica’s regulatory requirements over the amount determined under IFRS (Note 7).
Future pension increases 5.50% 6.50%
Medical claims growth 7.00% 7.50% 23. Retained Earnings Reserve
Average expected remaining working lives (years) 22.9 18.4

The Banking Act permits the transfer of any portion of the Bank’s net profit to a retained earnings reserve. This
reserve constitutes a part of the capital base for the purpose of determining the maximum level of deposit liabilities
and lending to customers. The deposit liabilities of the Bank and other indebtedness for borrowed money together
2013 2012 with all interest accrued should not exceed twenty-five times its capital base.

Male 23.18 23.09

Female 25.98 25.93

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 60 on the statement of financial position date is
as follows:

24. Stock Option Reserve

The Bank participates in the 2003 Stock Option Plan for the Managers of GraceKennedy Limited (Senior
Mortality assumptions are based on the American 1994 Group Annuitant Mortality (GAM94) table. Managers Plan) and the 2008 Stock Option Plan for the Permanent Employees of GraceKennedy Limited

(Permanent Employees Plan), operated by the ultimate parent company in which management and key employees
may participate. 10,000,000 shares have been allocated to each plan since their inception. Allocations were
approved at Annual General Meetings of the ultimate parent company. The plans provide for equitable adjustment

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligations of the allocated number of shares by reason of stock splits, combinations or exchanges of shares, stock dividends,
Change in Increase in Decrease in bonus issues, and reclassifications or similar corporate changes in the ultimate parent company.
Assumption Assumption Assumption

The subscription prices of the options granted are generally determined by using the weighted average prices of
$’000 $’000 the ultimate parent company’s shares on the Jamaica Stock Exchange for the previous ten trading days prior to the

Discount rate . date on which each set of options is approved, less a discount of 25% for the Permanent Employees Pilan. The
iscou 1% 155,505 (209,744) options granted under the provisions of the Senior Managers Plan are exercisable over a period of six years while
Future salary increases 1% (84,245) 74,856 the options granted under the provisions of the Permanent Employees Plan are exercisable over a period of three
Expected pension increase 1% (109,685) 00,483 months from their grant dates, at the end of which unexercised_ options will expire. The options grant_ed under the
= 2 Permanent Employees Plan were fully vested at grant date, while ¥4 of the total grants under the Senior Managers
Impact on defined benefit Plan will vest on each anniversary of the grant.
obligations : " 5 . B .
increase Docrease The movementfm”the l_'lumber of stock options outstanding for the year and their related weighted average exercise
Assumption Assumption by prices were as ftollows:
by One Year One Year 2013 2012
$’000 $’000 Average Average
exercise exercise
Life expectancy £.008 16,303 price in $ per Options price in $ Options
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions o share ’000 per share ’000
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. At beginning of year 50.83 221 43.74 340
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same Forfeited 50.83 (44) _ _
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the :
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the Expired - - 50.83 (99)
statement of financial position. Exercised _ - 43.91 (20)
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to At end of the year 50.83 177 50.83 221
the previous period.
Stoc! i i h f i : . . N
The sensitivity of the post-employment medical benefits to changes in the principal assumptions is: k options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:
Exercise
Impact on oottt;:-.;r :tr:wopr:gyee benefit price in $ 2013 2012
g i ’ 5
Change in Increase in Decrease in Year of expiry per share 000 000
Assumption Assumption Assumption 2016 50.83 177 221
$’000 $’000
. The fair value of the options granted determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model was $8,231,000. The
Di t rat I . . - " : ,
‘seount rate 1% 12,334 (16,108) significant inputs into the model were the weighted average share prices of $51.00, $55.65 and $61.20 at the grant
Medical inflation rate 1% (16,351) 12,682

dates, exercise prices of $50.83, $41.67 and $61.20, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 33.2%
option life of six years and three months and risk-free interest rates of 7.48%, 6.51% and 6.28%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the terms of the options.

Risks i d with p. Pl and other employee benefit plans

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the Bank is exposed to a

i i i f which tailed below: P
number of risks, the most significant of which are detaile: elo 25. Interest Income on Securities
Asset volatility

2013 2012
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to Government of Jamaica bond $’000 $’000
yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. Interest income was earned on —
As the plan matures, the Bank intends to reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in assets that investments classified as available-for-sale 861,840 891,506
b phhlb Thi lud itori d rebal i th t cl d th turit

etter match the liabilities. is process includes monitoring and rebalancing e asset classes an e maturity "

profile of assets within these classes. The Government bonds largely represent investments in Government of Securities purchased under resale agreements 6,820 14,111
Jamaica securities. 868,660 905,617

However, the Bank believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, a level of continuing equity
investment is an appropriate element of the Bank’s long term strategy to manage the plans efficiently.

CONTINUED ON NEXT PA
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26. Fee and Commission Income

2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Credit related 237,061 181,766
Retail banking 187,189 140,279
Other 161,452 151,382
585,702 473,427
27. Gain on Investment Activities
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Gain on sale of investments classified as available-for-sale 182,188 121
Losses on debt exchange transactions (45,088) -
Gain on revaluation of put option 5,264 -
142,364 121
28. Staff Costs
Restated
2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Wages and salaries 786,413 727,915
Statutory contributions 65,864 56,787
Pension benefits
Defined contribution scheme 23,252 16,727
Defined benefit scheme (Note 17) - (1,591)
Other post-employment benefits (Note 17) 32,006 27,308
Other 89,067 87,492
996,602 913,638
29. Administration and Other Expenses
2013 2012
$’000 $’°000
Advertising and publicity 58,950 46,633
Asset Tax 41,423 36,484
Auditors’ remuneration 7,900 7,782
Bank charges 42,608 31,409
Computer expenses 79,699 65,269
Credit card expenses 40,384 29,657
Directors’ emoluments 7,343 4,741
Fees and charges 31,437 16,432
Group expenses 312,181 277,219
insurance and licensing 60,300 54,798
irrecoverable General Consumption Tax 83,511 74,209
Postage and courier 17,597 15,893
Professional fees 17,786 27,677
Property costs, maintenance and utilities 194,575 170,149
Stationery 14,734 12,610
Other 42,207 37,291
1,052,635 908,253

Group expenses incurred relate to royalties and management fees paid to its parent and uitimate parent

company.

30. Taxation

Taxation is based on profit for the year adjusted for taxation purposes and comprises:

Restated

2013 2012

$°000 $’000

Current taxation - -
Deferred taxation (Note 12) 157,608 729
157,608 729

The tax on the profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic statutory rate of

33%% as follows:

Restated
2013 2012
$’000 $°000
Profit before taxation 711,086 387,477
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 33%4:% 237,029 129,159
Adjusted for the effects of —
Tax free income (78,120) (97,900)
Preference dividends -
Current year (15,546) (13,761)
Prior year - (13,542)
Asset tax 13,808 12,161
Expenses disallowed for tax purposes and other charges 437 (15,388)
157,608 729
The tax charge/(credit) relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:
2013
Tax
charge/
Before tax (credit) After tax
$°000 $’000 $’000
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss:
Reatised gains on available-for-sale
investments, recycled to comprehensive
income 137,100 (45,700) 91,400
Unrealised losses on available-for-sale
investments 272,518 (90,840) 181,678
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of pension and other
employment benefit obligation (135,563) 45,188 (90,375)
274,055 (91,352) 182,703
The tax charge/(credit) relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows (continued):
2012
Tax
charge/
Before tax {credit) After tax
$’000 $’000 $’000
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss:
Realised gains on available-for-sale
investments,recycled to comprehensive
income 121 (40) 81
Unrealised losses on available-for-sale
investments 44,674 (14,891) 29,783
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of pension and other
employment benefit obligation 38,087 (12,696) 25,391
82,882 (27.,627) 55,255

31. Related Party Transactions and Balances

(a) The statement of financial position includes balances, in the ordinary course of business, with the ultimate
parent company, fellow subsidiaries, key management personnel (directors and senior executives) and other

related parties as follows:

2013 2012
$’000 $’000
Loans —
Key management personnel 57,657 54,171
Other related entities 119,008 92,931
176,665 147,102
Loans to key management personnel and other related entities
Balance as at 1 January 147,102 181,578
Loans advanced 37,532 142,089
Loan repayments received (8,027) (176,846)
Interest charged 12,284 7,728
Interest received (12,226) (7,447)
Balance as at 1 January 176,665 147,102

The loans to Key management personnel attract interest rates ranging between 0% - 15% (2012 - 0% - 15%)
and are repayable in the years 2014 - 2032. These loans are secured and are made on terms similar to those
offered to other employees. No provision has been required in 2013 and 2012 for the loans made to directors

and senior managers.

31.

32.

33.

34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

(a) The statement of financial position includes balances, in the ordinary course of business, with the ultimate
parent company, fellow subsidiaries, key management personnel {directors and senior executives) and other
related parties as follows (continued):

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Other assets —
Fellow subsidiaries 3,382 5,730
Customer deposits —
Ultimate parent company 410,896 593,393
Fellow subsidiaries 2,539,722 2,160,798
Key management personnel 191,340 153,099
Other related entities 1,033,320 392,777
4,175,278 3,300,067
Securities sold under repurchase agreements —
Fellow subsidiaries 50,060 129,958
Other liabilities —
Fellow subsidiaries 23,956 3,173

(b

-~

The statement of comprehensive income includes transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with the
ultimate parent company, fellow subsidiaries, key management personnel (directors and senior executives)
and other related parties as follows:

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Interest earned on loans —
Ultimate parent company - 795
Fellow subsidiaries - 2,488
Key management personnel 3,687 3,278
Other related entities 8,697 1,167
12,284 7,728
Interest earned on cash and other accounts —
Ultimate parent company 1,285 1,565
Fellow subsidiaries 4,806 4,329
Key management personnel 273 296
Other related entities 917 882
7,281 7,072
Interest earned on securities purchased under resale agreements —
Fellow subsidiaries 243 191
2013 2012
$’000 $°000
Interest incurred on customer deposits —
Ultimate parent company 25,540 41,282
Fellow subsidiaries 68,190 59,145
Key management personnel 3,771 4,436
Other related entities 10,453 15,587
107,954 120,450
Interest incurred on securities sold under repurchase agreements —
Fellow subsidiaries 2,474 11,337
Staff costs — key management personnel
Directors 29,441 29,547
Senior executives 123,202 122,390
152,643 151,937
Administration and other expenses —
Ultimate parent company 312,181 273,510
Fellow subsidiaries 39,746 54,386
Directors’ fees 7,343 4,741
359,270 332,637
Other related entities primarily represent entities which are under the control of directors of the Bank.
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Operating lease commitments
Future lease payments under operating lease commitments are payable
2013 - 77,649
2014 94,853 83,278
2015 93,434 83,054
2016 48,749 44,631
2017 and beyond 153,352 111,576
390,388 400,188

Loan commitments
Loans approved but not disbursed at year end amounted to $2,898,656,000 (2012 — $2,887,375,000).

Contingent liabilities
Guarantees and letters of credit for which the Bank has an indirect obligation at year end $562,574,000
(2012 - $132,412,000).

Litigation, Claims and Assessments

The Bank is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings, as part of the normal course of business.
Provision is made for such matters when, in the opinion of management and its professional advisors, it is
probable that a payment will be made by the Bank, and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

In respect of claims asserted against the Bank, according to the principles outlined above, which have not been
provided for, management is of the opinion that such claims are either without merit, can be successfully
defended or will result in exposure to the Bank which is immaterial to both its financial position and resuits of
operations.

Restatement

The financial statements of the Bank for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 have been
restated to reflect the adoption of IAS 19 (Revised), 'Employee Benefits'. The effect of this adoption on the
Bank’s financial statements were as follows:

As at 31 December 2012, in the statement of financial position, the pension plan asset decreased by
$140,082,000, the other employee benefit obligations decreased by $2,536,000, the deferred tax assets
increased by $45,849,000 and the retained earnings decreased by $91,697,000.

In the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2012, staff costs in the income
statement decreased by $2,570,000 and taxation expense increased by $917,000 and in Other Comprehensive
income, Re-measurements of pension and other employee benefits increased by $25,391,000.

in the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2012, there was no impact on the Net Cash
Flows from operating activities, Net Cash Flows from investing Activities or the Net Cash Flows from Financing
Activities.

As at 31 December 2011, in the statement of financial position, the pension pian asset decreased by
$105,674,000, the other employee benefit obligations decreased by $3,464,000, the deferred tax assets
increased by $34,070,000 and the retained earnings decreased by $68,140,000.

No other financial statement lines were affected by the restatement.
The statement of financial position for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 along with

the affected notes to the financial statements were appropriately restated in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 1.




